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teams that play vital roles in Pierce Transit’s ability to connect 
communities with safe, reliable, customer-friendly transit options.
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Pierce Transit’s instructors provide 
quality training and teach technical 
skills to transit and SHUTTLE 
operators. As a result, our drivers 
are our greatest safety feature, 
earning national recognition 
for their skills.
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Commissioner Marilyn Strickland
Mayor of Tacoma

CHAIR
Term Expires 12/31/15

Pierce Transit is a separate 
municipal corporation, not 
part of the City of Tacoma 
or Pierce County.  

Pierce Transit is governed 
by a ten-member Board of 
Commissioners. The Board is 
made up of elected officials 
representing Pierce County, 
Tacoma, Lakewood, Puyallup, 
University Place, the smaller 
towns and cities of our service 
area, and one non-voting 
Union Representative.

Commissioner Rick Talbert
Pierce County Council

VICE CHAIR
Term Expires 12/31/13

Commissioner Don Anderson
Lakewood Deputy Mayor

Term Expires 12/31/14          

Commissioner Glenn Hull
Fife Mayor Pro Tem
Term Expires 12/31/14

Commissioner Derek Young
Gig Harbor Council
Term Expires 12/31/13

Commissioner Don McKnight
Non-voting Union Representative

Term Expires N/A

Commissioner Pat McCarthy
Pierce County Executive

Term Expires 5/1/15

Commissioner Kent Keel
University Place Council

Term Expires 12/31/14

Commissioner Lauren Walker
Tacoma City Council
Term Expires 12/31/15

Commissioner Steve Vermillion
Puyallup City Council

Term Expires 5/1/14
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Pierce Transit’s expert maintenance 
team routinely completes major 
mechanical, structural, interior, 
and exterior repairs to our extensive 
fleet of vehicles, to assure our riders 
are safe and comfortable.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

 

June 20, 2014 

 

 

Board of Commissioners 

Pierce Transit 

Lakewood, Washington 

 

 

REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pierce Transit, Pierce County, 

Washington, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related notes to 

the financial statements, which collectively comprise Pierce Transit’s basic financial statements 

as listed in the table of contents.   

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 

includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 

preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error.   

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We 

conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 

Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards 

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

financial statements are free from material misstatement.   

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 

considers internal control relevant to Pierce Transit’s preparation and fair presentation of the 

Washington State Auditor 

Troy Kelley 

 

Insurance Building, P.O. Box 40021  Olympia, Washington 98504-0021  (360) 902-0370   TDD Relay (800) 833-6388 
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financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Pierce Transit’s internal 

controls.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the 

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 

statements.   

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion. 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 

the financial position of Pierce Transit, Pierce County, Washington, as of December 31, 2013 

and 2012, and the changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 

management’s discussion and analysis on pages 13 through 20 be presented to supplement the 

basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 

statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be 

an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 

operational, economic or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the 

required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 

the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 

preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 

responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 

during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any 

assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 

evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

 

Other Information 

The information identified in the table of contents as the Introductory and Statistical sections is 

presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial 

statements of Pierce Transit.  Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures 

applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an 

opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

 

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING 

STANDARDS 
 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue our report dated June 20, 

2014, on our consideration of Pierce Transit’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 

tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant 
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agreements and other matters.  That report will be issued under separate cover in Pierce  

Transit’s Single Audit Report.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 

of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not 

to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report 

is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 

considering Pierce Transit’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
 

TROY KELLEY 

STATE AUDITOR 
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Pierce Transit’s dispatch group 
works diligently to ensure that for 
every patron waiting at a bus stop, 
an operator is scheduled to arrive on 
that run. The system works behind-
the-scenes, seamlessly, to meet 
the needs of our passengers.
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Pierce Transit 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 

 

 
 

Following is management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) of Pierce Transit’s financial activities for the years 
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.  This discussion should be reviewed in conjunction with the financial 
statements, which follow this report. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 

• Net income for 2013, before contributions, was $1.8 million, compared to $(2.0) million for 2012 and 
$(14.1) million in 2011.  The 2013 increase is due to a decrease in personnel and fuel expenditures. The 
2012 increase in net income came from expense reductions resulting from the annualization of service 
reductions in 2011. Capital contributions of $5.8 million and a $1.8 million net gain accounted for the 
approximately $7.1 million increase in net position in 2013.   

 
• Due to declining sales tax revenues as a result of the recession, Pierce Transit has implemented fixed 

route service reductions over the last several years, reducing fixed route service hours to 427,717 in 
2014 from high of 660,657 hours in 2008.  Sales tax revenues, while not yet at pre-recession levels, are 
increasing over the prior year and are expected to grow modestly in the future.  Projected expenditures 
are now in alignment with projected revenues and 2014 service levels are anticipated to be sustainable 
over the next six years.   
 

• Pierce Transit’s assets exceeded its liabilities on December 31, 2013 by $227.4 million (net position) 
compared to $219.7 million in 2012 and $219.2 million in 2011.  Investments in capital assets decreased 
by $4.5 million, $7.4 million and $6.9 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011 respectively.  Unrestricted net 
position increased by $12.1 million in 2013 and by $7.9 million in 2012 and decreased by $3.5 million in 
2011.  These reserves are available to fund operating, capital and self-insurance commitments. 

  
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Pierce Transit’s basic financial 
statements.  The notes to the financial statements contain more detail on the information presented in the 
financial statements. 
 
Pierce Transit’s financial statements report information about the Agency using accounting methods similar to 
those used by private sector companies.  Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses 
are recorded as soon as they result in liabilities for benefits received.  The Comparative Statement of Net 
Position presents information on Pierce Transit’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between assets and  
liabilities reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful 
indicator of whether Pierce Transit’s financial position is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information 
showing how the Agency’s net position changed during the current and prior fiscal years.  All changes to net 
position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing 
of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only 
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but unused vacation leave). 
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Pierce Transit 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 
 
The Comparative Statement of Cash Flows presents information on Pierce Transit’s cash receipts, cash 
payments, and net changes in cash and cash equivalents for the most recent two fiscal years.  Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles require that cash flows be classified into one of four categories: 

 
• Cash flows from operating activities 

 
• Cash flows from non-capital financing activities 

 
• Cash flows from capital and related financing activities 

 
• Cash flows from investing activities 

 
Pierce Transit’s financial statements can be found on page 22 to 24 of this report. 
 
The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding 
of the data provided with the financial statements.  The Notes to the Financial Statements can be found on 
page 25 to 42 of this report. 
 
Financial Statement Analysis 
 
As noted earlier, net position may serve as a useful indication of the Agency’s financial position.  Total net 
position exceeds liabilities by $227.4 million, $219.7 million and $219.2 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011 
respectively.   

 
Summary Statement for Net Position 

For the years ending December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 
 
           2013         2012         2011 

Assets:      
 Current Assets  $   131,433,577    $   120,843,031   $   115,359,981  
 Capital Assets (net)     108,630,726      113,079,561      120,444,631  
 Total Assets  $ 240,064,303    $ 233,922,592     $ 235,804,612  
       
Liabilities:       
 Current Liabilities $  11,111,172     $  12,531,022  $   11,945,780 
 Other Non-Current Liabilities      1,552,869         1,666,324        4,665,857  
 Total Liabilities       12,664,041         14,197,346        16,611,637  
       
Net position:       
 Net Investment in Capital Assets     108,630,726       113,079,562      120,444,631  
 Unrestricted Net Position     118,769,537       106,645,684       98,748,344  
 Total Net Position     227,400,262       219,725,246       219,192,975  

 
Total Liabilities and Net 
Position  $ 240,064,303    $ 233,922,592    $ 235,804,612  
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Pierce Transit 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 
 
 
A large majority of Pierce Transit’s 2013 capital assets ($108.6 million) reflect its investment in capital assets 
(e.g. revenue vehicles, passenger facilities, and shop equipment).  The Agency uses these capital assets to 
provide transportation to the community.  These are committed assets and this portion of the net position 
balance is not available for future spending.  A portion ($30.6 million) of the remaining net position balance of 
$118.8 million has been restricted or designated by Board action (e.g., capital, workers’ compensation and 
liability self-insurance programs) or by bond covenants.  The remainder of $88.2 million is available to support 
future obligations for transportation operations.   
 

 
 

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expense and Change in Net Position 
For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 & 2011 

       
            2013           2012          2011 
Operating Revenue $   46,650,262  $   43,858,454  $   44,499,060 
Non-Operating Revenue 4,248,092  5,132,967  5,481,656  
Operating Subsidies 73,898,968   75,370,259  74,495,170 
 Total Revenue 124,797,322  124,361,680      124,475,886 
       
Operating Expense 107,114,336  111,719,860  121,984,843 
Non-Operating Expense 1,117,008  1,194,016  2,016,445 
Depreciation 14,746,142  13,431,897  14,524,411 
 Total Expense 122,977,486  126,345,773        138,525,699  
       
 Net Position before Contribution  1,819,836  (1,984,093)       (14,049,813)   
Capital Grants 5,855,179  2,516,365         3,668,952  
 Change in Net Position $       7,675,015  $         532,272   $    (10,380,861) 
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Pierce Transit 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 
 
A description of operating & non-operating revenue follows: 
       
Operating Revenue          2013           2012          2011 
 Passenger Fares  $   12,266,180    $   12,219,240   $   13,502,385 
 Advertising           952,540             658,345           738,817 
 Regional Transit Service      33,431,542        30,980,869       30,257,858 
 Total Operating Revenue      46,650,262        43,858,454       44,499,060   
       
Non-Operating Revenue      
Operating Subsidies:      
 Sales Tax      63,407,486        65,190,106       64,512,697 
 Operating Grants        10,491,482          10,180,153         9,982,473 
Other Non-Operating Revenue:      
 Investment Income        151,610          198,874         100,949 
 Miscellaneous Income       4,096,480         4,934,093        5,380,707 
 Total Non-Operating Revenue      78,147,058        80,503,226        79,976,826 
 Total Revenue  $ 124,797,320    $ 124,361,680    $ 124,475,886   

 
 
Operating Revenue 
 

• Pierce Transit’s passenger fares consist of revenues from the sale of passes and tickets as well as 
cash fares collected on-board revenue vehicles.  Pierce Transit has partnered with six other 
Central Puget Sound transit agencies on a regional fare collection system (ORCA) using smart 
card technology.  Customers can purchase fare media from any of the six partners, regardless of 
where the media is used.   
 

• Fare revenues leveled out in 2013 to $12.3 million.  Fare revenues in 2012 and 2011 were $12.2 
million and $13.55 million respectively.  Fare revenues decreased in 2012 over 2011 levels 
because of the service reductions that took place due in late 2011 and additional reductions in 
2012. 

 
• Advertising revenues were $.9 million in 2013, .7 million in 2012 and .7 million in 2011.  These 

fluctuations were due to the timing of contractual guarantees and reduced service hours in 2011.   
 
• Regional transit service is the fixed route express service provided for Sound Transit, Puget 

Sound’s Regional Transit Authority.  An inter-local agreement between Pierce Transit and 
Sound Transit has been established for the operation of this service.  The agreement is for a 
period of two years.  The current operating agreement ends on December 31, 2014.  Revenues 
generated from this regional transit service were $33.4 million in 2013, an increase of 8% over 
2012.  Regional transit service revenues were $31 million and $30.3 million in 2012 and 2011,  
respectively.  These increases were a result of a change in the number of service hours as  well 
as the rate Pierce Transit charges for providing this service. 
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Pierce Transit 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 
 

• Sales tax, accounting for 51% of Pierce Transit’s total revenue (excluding capital), decreased by 
$1.8 million, a decrease of 2.73% over 2012. The decrease is due to Pierce Transit’s boundary 
reduction for sales tax collection combined with an increase in retail sales within the new 
boundaries. The increase between 2011 and 2012 was due to a small increase in retail sales 
during 2012.  Sales tax revenue was $63.4 million in 2013, as compared to $65.2 million in 2012 
and $64.5 million in 2011.   

 
• The majority of operating grant revenue is received from the Federal Transit Administration 

(FTA).  Operating grants received in 2013 totaled $10.5 million compared to $10.2 million in 
2012 and $10 million in 2011.  The changes in grant revenues are because operating grant 
contracts are awarded on an annual basis and vary from year to year. 

 
• Investment income increased 97% from 2011 earnings.  2013 investment earnings were $.2 

million compared to $.2 million in 2012 and $.1 million in 2011.  This primarily due to flat 
interest rates in 2013.  
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Operating Expenses 
 
Total 2013 operating expenses, excluding depreciation and capital, totaled $121.9 million decreasing 2.6% from 
2012 levels.  Operating expenses for 2012 and 2011 were $125.2 million and $136.5 million respectively. The 
decrease between 2013 and 2012 is due to a reduction is non-operator salaries and benefits including contract 
personnel, positions being unfilled in 2013, agency reorganization, and lower CNG costs.  The decrease 
between 2012 and 2011 is due to service reductions that were implemented in October 2011. In addition, a fire 
in Pierce Transit’s CNG fueling station required buses to be fueled off-site and increased 2011 fuel and labor 
expenditures.  
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Pierce Transit 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 
 
 
Operating Expenses:               2013           2012  2011 
 Wages & Benefits   $    74,160,441    $    76,615,405    $    82,413,780  
 Fuel & Lubricants           7,409,160            8,698,804            10,620,144  
 Supplies & Materials           5,011,098            5,683,897            6,200,926  
 Contracts & Services         20,533,637          20,721,754          22,749,993  
 Depreciation & Amortization  14,746,142  13,431,897  14,524,411 
 Total Operating Expenses  121,860,478  125,151,757  136,509,254 
        
Non-Operating Expenses:       
 Items Previously Deferred         224,061          126,620         909,998  
 Grant Exchange Funds           882,644            884,000           1,106,447  
 Total Non-Operating Expenses         1,106,705          1,010,620          2,016,445  
 Total Expenses   $  122,967,183    $  126,162,377    $  138,525,699  

 

 
Wages and benefits for 2013 of $74.2 million make up 69% of operating expenses (exclusive of depreciation) 
and decreased 3.2% over 2012 levels.  Wages and benefits for 2012 and 2011 were $76.6 million and $82.4 
million respectively and decreased by .7% between 2012 and 2011.  The decrease between 2012 and 2011 was 
due to the reduction in service and related layoffs that occurred in June and October 2011.   
 
Total operating expenses, exclusive of depreciation and capital, are most directly impacted by the number of 
service hours Pierce Transit operates. Service hours include drive time while in service, deadhead and layover.  
Following is a table representing the number of service hours by type of service for 2013, 2012 and 2011: 
 
Service Hours:  2013  2012  2011 
 Fixed Route Pierce Transit    412,704    416,746    498,819 
 Fixed Route Sound Transit    283,037    262,762    253,505 
 Specialized Transportation     182,492    188,451    214,183 
 Vanpool    144,384    140,411    140,533 
  Total  1,022,617  1,008,370  1,107,040 
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Pierce Transit 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets include revenue vehicles, support vehicles, projects in progress, land, buildings, shop equipment, 
passenger facilities, and other assets having a life of more than one year with an acquisition value of more than 
$5,000.  Pierce Transit’s investment in capital assets as of December 31, 2013 totaled $108.6 million, net of 
accumulated depreciation.  This compares to a 2012 net investment in capital assets of $113.1 million and a 
2011 net investment in capital assets of $120.4 million.  2013 net capital decreased by 3.9%, or $4.5 million.  
This is the result of the increase of .3 million in assets and $4.8 million in accumulated depreciation for 2013.  
Net 2012 capital assets decreased by 6.1% or $7.4 million and decreased by .5.4% or $6.9 million for 2011.   
 
Capital contributions in 2013 totaled $5.9 million.  Capital grants funded 53% of Pierce Transit’s capital 
acquisitions in 2013.  The Federal Transit Administration provides the majority of this funding.  For a more 
detailed discussion on capital assets see footnote 1I. 
 
Capital acquisitions during 2013 totaled $11 million and included the following major capital assets: 
 

• $3.9 million for Gillig Hybrid Electric Coaches 
 

• $.6 million for property improvements and building improvements 
  
• 1.5 million for a SHUTTLE and Vanpool Vehicles 

 
• $5 million for technology projects and administrative equipment 
  

Debt Administration 
 
Pierce Transit has adopted a debt policy which governs debt issuance, the use of debt, types of debt and debt 
limitations.  Pierce Transit has no outstanding debt as of December 31, 2013.   
 
Pierce Transit's authorized debt limit without a vote of the people is .375% of the value of the taxable property 
within its boundaries.  The estimated non-voted debt capacity is $129,306,679.  Pierce Transit's maximum debt 
capacity (voted and non-voted) is 1.25% of assessed valuation, or $427,954,219.  This estimate is based on the 
assessed value of the cities and towns of Edgewood, Fife, Fircrest, Gig Harbor, Lakewood, Milton, Pacific, 
Puyallup, Ruston, Steilacoom, Tacoma, and University Place, which are served by Pierce Transit.  This estimate  
 
does not include any of the assessed valuation from the unincorporated areas of Pierce County within Pierce 
Transit's jurisdiction.   
 
Reserve Policies 
 
Pierce Transit’s Board of Commissioners has adopted reserve policies in order to ensure that financial 
resources are managed in a prudent manner.  These policies address the basic principles needed to promote 
sound accounting, auditing, and financial practices.  A summary of these policies follows: 
 

• Operating Reserve:  Pierce Transit will maintain the Operating Reserve at a minimum of two months of 
Agency operating expenditures. The Operating Reserve will be maintained at a level to provide 
sufficient working capital, to provide an adequate cash balance to finance cash flow requirements, to  
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Pierce Transit 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 
 
offset unanticipated downturns in revenues and to provide funds for emergency expenditure 
requirements.  

 
• Insurance Reserve:  The Insurance Reserve will be set at a level to adequately protect the Agency from 

self-insurance risks. 
 
• Capital Reserve:  The minimum amount of the Capital Reserve will be set at a level equal to ten percent 

of the six-year average annual capital expenditures and fifty percent of the average annual grant funding 
programmed in the Six-Year Financial Plan.  The capital reserve has been set at a level to enable the 
Agency to respond to urgent unanticipated capital expenditure requirements as well as to protect Pierce 
Transit from the uncertainty of Federal and State grant funding.   

 
• Pierce Transit complied with its reserve policies during 2013. 

 
Factors Affecting Financial Condition 

 
Local Economy 

 
• Sales tax revenue is projected to be 50% of Pierce Transit’s operating revenues in 2014, compared to 

51% in 2013.  Excluding contracted regional transit service, which does not fund local Pierce Transit 
service, sales tax revenue was 69% of total operating revenues in 2013, compared to 72% of total 
operating revenues projected in 2014.  Because Pierce Transit relies heavily on sales tax to fund local 
service, local and national economic conditions are a significant influence on Pierce Transit’s operating 
revenues.  
 

• The Pierce County economy is expected to experience slow growth of about 2.9% in 2014. Boeing’s 
recent decision to produce the 777X plane in the Puget Sound region will positively impact the local 
economy in 2014.  Consumption is slowly returning to pre-recession levels and Washington state 
unemployment declined to 6.3 percent in March of 2014, down from year-end 2013 levels of 7.4 
percent.  A potential increase to the minimum wage in the City of Seattle will have an undetermined 
impact to the local economy.  However, statistics from the Congressional Budget Office indicate that 
the region could lose 7,000 direct jobs as a result, with up to 25,000 jobs being impacted. 
 

• Pierce Transit has yet to recover from lost sales tax revenues resulting from the recession. Pierce 
Transit projects an increase of three percent in sales tax revenues in 2014.  Service reductions have been 
taken over the last several years to bring expenditures more in alignment with revenues. 
 

Long Term Financial Outlook 
 
• Pierce Transit recognizes that its heavy reliance on sales tax revenues makes it more susceptible to 

economic fluctuations than most government agencies.  In response, Pierce Transit has in place reserve 
policies to insulate it from short term revenue downturns and unanticipated expenditures.  The 
operating reserve policy sets operating reserves to be equal to two months’ operating expenses.  This 
amounts to nearly $20 million in 2014.   

 
• Pierce Transit has implemented fixed route service reductions over the last several years, bringing fixed 

route service hours down to 427,717 in 2014 from high of 660,657 hours in 2008.  The 2014 service 
levels will be sustainable over the Six-Year Financial Plan.   
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Pierce Transit’s Public Safety 
department makes sure our 
customers are safe, whether riding to 
their destination, or waiting at a PT 
facility. In addition, they provide 
instruction on bike safety during 
National Bike Month.
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Pierce Transit
Comparative Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2013 and 2012

CURRENT ASSETS 2013               2012
Cash & Cash Equivalents 8,029,518$              4,561,531$              
Investments 97,093,503 88,770,470
Accounts Receivable 2,288,413 1,045,535
Interest Receivable 0 116
Sales Tax Receivable 11,391,413 10,880,016
Due From Other Governments 9,823,651 12,553,456
Prepaid Expenses 275,889 458,292
Inventories 2,531,190 2,573,615

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 131,433,577            120,843,031            

CAPITAL ASSETS
Land 19,380,991 19,380,991
Work in Progress 10,573,006 13,152,159
Structures & Improvements 70,460,279 70,037,604
Site Improvements 53,571,111 48,411,655
Machinery & Equipment 127,273,018 129,910,568
Less:  Accumulated Depreciation (172,627,679) (167,813,416)

NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS 108,630,726            113,079,561            
TOTAL ASSETS 240,064,303$          233,922,592$          

CURRENT LIABILITIES               2012
Checks Payable 315,770$                 433,118$                 
Accounts Payable 2,421,604 3,060,972
Retainage Payable 31,390 107,329
Unearned Revenue 201,307 466,167

Wages and Benefits Payable 1,390,852 1,474,121
Employee Leave Payable 3,979,862 4,288,907
Due to Other Governments 1,471,289 1,112,675
Provision for Uninsured Claims 1,299,098 1,587,733

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 11,111,172              12,531,022              

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Employee Leave Payable 1,552,869 1,666,324

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 1,552,869                1,666,324                
TOTAL LIABILITIES 12,664,041              14,197,346              

NET POSITION
Net Invested in Capital Assets 108,630,726 113,079,561
Unrestricted Net Position 118,769,537 106,645,685

TOTAL NET POSITION 227,400,262            219,725,246            
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 240,064,303$          233,922,592$          

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Pierce Transit
Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

OPERATING INCOME            2013            2012
Passenger Fares 12,266,180$         12,219,240$         

 Advertising 952,540                658,345                
Regional Transit Service 33,431,542           30,980,869           

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 46,650,262           43,858,454           

OPERATING EXPENSES
 Operations  64,793,783           62,391,140           
 Maintenance   19,791,190           21,976,196           
Non-Vehicle Maintenance 4,599,756             4,458,279             
General & Administration 17,929,607           22,894,245           
Depreciation & Amortization 14,746,142           13,431,897           

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 121,860,478         125,151,757         
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (75,210,216)          (81,293,303)          

NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE)
Operating Subsidies:

Sales Tax 63,407,486           65,190,106           
Operating Grants 10,491,482           10,180,153           

Other:
Expense of Items Previously Deferred (224,061)               (126,620)               
Interest Income 151,610                198,874                
Grant Exchange Funds (882,644)               (884,000)               
Miscellaneous Non-Operating Income 4,096,480             4,934,093             
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assets (10,303)                 (183,396)               

NET NON-OPERATING INCOME 77,030,052           79,309,210           

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 1,819,836             (1,984,093)            
Capital Contributions 5,855,179             2,516,365             

NET INCOME (LOSS) AFTER CONTRIBUTIONS 7,675,015             532,272                

NET POSITION-BEGINNING 219,725,247         219,192,975         
NET POSITION-ENDING 227,400,262$        219,725,247$        

 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Pierce Transit
Comparative Statement of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012
INCREASE(DECREASE)IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
  Cash Received From Customers 48,216,281$             41,555,809$             
  Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods & Services (33,441,298)              (35,071,808)              
  Cash Payments to Employees for Services (74,666,210)              (78,205,283)              
  Miscellaneous Non-Operating Income 4,096,480                 4,934,093                 
     Net Cash Used By Operating Activities (55,794,747) (66,787,189)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
  Sales Tax Received 62,896,089               65,832,351               
  Operating Grants Received 10,459,321               8,670,313                 
  Grant Exchange Funds (882,644)                  (884,000)                  
     Net Cash Provided By Noncapital Financing Activities 72,472,766 73,618,664
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
  Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (10,888,279)              (7,520,363)               
  Capital Grants and Contributions 5,855,179                 2,600,065                 
  Principal Paid on Debt -                          -                          
  Interest Paid on Debt                    -                          -                          
  Proceeds From Sale of Equipment (10,303)                    619,539                   
      Net Cash Used By Capital and Related Financing Activity (5,043,403) (4,300,759)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
  Purchase of Investment Securities (72,011,333)              (72,695,835)              
  Proceeds from Maturities of Investment Securities 63,688,300               65,609,690               
  Interest on Investments 156,404                   204,512                   
     Net Cash Used By Investing Activities (8,166,629) (6,881,633)

  Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,467,987 (4,350,917)
  Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 4,561,531 8,912,448
     Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 8,029,518$               4,561,531$               
  See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
  Operating Loss (75,210,216)$            (81,293,303)$            

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING 
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
  Depreciation and Amortization 14,746,142               13,431,897               
  Miscellaneous Non-Operating Income 4,096,480                 4,934,093                 

CHANGE IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES FROM OPERATIONS:
  (Increase) Decrease in Receivables (1,242,878)               (847,855)                  
  (Increase) Decrease in Inventories 42,425                     86,082                     
  (Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses 182,403                   (246,911)                  
  (Increase) Decrease in Due from Other Governments 2,715,142                 (996,397)                  
  Increase (Decrease) in Warrants Payable (48,138)                    (147,785)                  
  Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable (375,458)                  63,685                     
  Increase (Decrease) in Unearned Revenue (264,860)                  (1,161,250)               
  Increase (Decrease) in Wages and Benefits Payable (505,769)                  (1,589,878)               
  Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Governments 358,614                   702,857                   
  Increase (Decrease) in Retainage Payable
  Increase (Decrease) in Provision for Uninsured Claims (288,634)                  277,576                   
      TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS 19,415,469               14,506,114               
      Net Cash Used By Operating Activities (55,794,747)$            (66,787,189)$            

  See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Pierce Transit 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 
 

1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The Pierce County Public Transportation Benefit Area Corporation, hereinafter Pierce Transit 
(PTBA), was authorized to begin operation of a public transportation system in 1980.  On January 1, 
1980, Pierce Transit assumed the operations of the City of Tacoma Transit System. 
 
The accounting policies of Pierce Transit (the Agency) conform to generally accepted accounting 
principles applicable to governmental units.  The following summary of the more significant 
accounting policies is presented to assist the reader in interpreting the financial statements and other 
data in this report.  These policies should be viewed as an integral part of the accompanying 
financial statements. 
 
A.  ENTITY - Pierce Transit is a municipal corporation formed under the authority of Chapter 
36.57A of the Revised Code of Washington.  Pierce Transit operates fixed route, specialized 
transportation (SHUTTLE), and vanpool transportation services to Pierce County, within Pierce 
Transit’s service area. In addition, rideshare matching services and commute trip reduction 
assistance is provided to local and regional employers. 
 
The Pierce Transit Board of Commissioners is responsible for governance of the Agency.  In 2012, a 
Public Transportation Improvement Conference (PTIC) changed Pierce Transit’s service and taxing 
area. Pierce Transit went from serving nineteen jurisdictions to serving fourteen jurisdictions. As a 
result, the composition of the Board of Commissioners changed.  The ten member Board consists 
of two members of the Tacoma City Council and two members of Pierce County government. The 
cities of Lakewood, Puyallup, and University Place each have one commissioner.  The cities of 
Edgewood, Fife and Milton have one Commissioner, elected amongst the three cities.  The 
remaining towns and cities have one Commissioner, elected amongst the six cities. A non-voting 
union representative is appointed by Amalgamated Transit Union Local 758. 
 
Pierce Transit is governed by an appointed Board of Commissioners whose members are elected by 
the jurisdictions they represent, is legally separate from other entities, and is fiscally independent of 
other state and local government entities.  The criteria, set forth in the Government Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement 14, indicate that Pierce Transit is a primary government for 
reporting purposes and that there are no additional entities or funds for which the Agency has 
reporting responsibilities.   
 
Pierce Transit has an undivided interest in a non-equity joint venture, jointly governed with seven 
other agencies for the provision of regional smart card fare (ORCA) collection services.  Pierce 
Transit’s undivided interests in the assets, liabilities and operations of the ORCA smart card are 
consolidated within these financial statements on a proportionate basis. 
 
B.  BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - Pierce Transit is a single proprietary fund.  Proprietary funds are 
accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting.  Under this method, revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded as soon as they result in liabilities for benefits received.  Revenues 
and expenses are categorized as operating or non-operating.  Operating revenues and expenses are 
those directly associated with the provision of transportation service.  Non-operating revenues and 
expenses are those ancillary to the provision of transportation service.   
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Pierce Transit 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 
 

In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 20, the Agency 
applies all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as the following pronouncements issued on or 
before November 30, 1989, unless the pronouncements conflict or contradict GASB 
pronouncements:  Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations, 
Accounting Principals Board (APB) opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins (ARBs) of the 
Committee on Accounting Procedures. 
 
C.  BUDGET AND SPENDING CONTROLS - Pierce Transit uses a budget that serves a 
variety of functions including planning, control, and information.  As a planning tool, the budget is 
used to quantify the financial implications of planned operations and evaluate fiscal alternatives.  As 
a control document, the budget assists in the day-to-day financial operations by providing fiscal 
control for individual purchases.  As an information source, the budget provides financial 
information about the Agency’s expected fiscal position.   
 
The modified accrual basis is used for budgeting.  Under this method, operating revenues and 
expenses are budgeted on the accrual basis.  Modified accrual budgeting is used for non-operating 
revenues and expenses, which include capital grant receipts and expenses, as well as debt service 
principal.  Unencumbered operating appropriations lapse at year-end.   
 
Capital expenses and grant reimbursements are budgeted on a project basis.  Projects are budgeted 
in their entirety when approved, regardless of anticipated expenditure dates.  Each year thereafter, 
the remaining portion of the project, as well as related grant reimbursements, are carried over to the 
following year.  
 
Pierce Transit adopts an annual budget in December of the preceding fiscal year following analysis 
by staff and the Board of Commissioners.  The budget is based on Agency-wide strategic priorities 
and divisional programs and objectives.   
 
The first step in developing an Agency budget is the development of the Agency goals.  These goals 
then act as a focus for the development of programs and objectives.  Concurrently with the 
development of programs and objectives, revenues for the coming year are estimated.  The estimate 
of the following year's operating revenues is then used as a guide for the Agency to determine the 
amount of service to be provided in the following year.  The emphasis is placed on operating 
revenues and expenses as other expenses are tied to resolutions, contractual agreements, and 
separately approved spending plans.  Washington State law requires a balanced budget.  The budget 
is balanced when adequate reserves are available to cover any excess of expenses over current 
revenues. 
 
Following the receipt of the preliminary budget request, the Executive Team reviews the programs, 
objectives, and expenditure requests to balance the total budget with the projected revenues, service 
requirements and agency priorities.  Once the preliminary budget is balanced, the Board of 
Commissioners review the budget requests.  During this period, the Board holds a public study 
session on the budget proposals.  When the budget review and final adjustments are complete, the 
budget is adopted by resolution.  
  
During the fiscal year, periodic budget reviews of actual expenses and revenues are made.  Should 
any significant budget variances in either expenses or revenues occur, budget amendments, if 
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Pierce Transit 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 
 

required, are made by resolution by the Board of Commissioners.  Individual department budgets 
are monitored for authorized expenses on a department total rather than a line-item basis.  With the 
exception of personnel costs, travel and training, and capital acquisitions, department and division 
managers may exercise their judgment in exceeding line item appropriations so long as they do not 
exceed their total appropriations.  Any overruns for the Agency as a whole must be authorized by 
resolution by the Board of Commissioners. 
 
A schedule of budgeted versus actual revenues and expenses for the periods ended December 31, 
2013 and 2012, is as follows: 

 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND NON-REVENUES BUDGETED VERSUS ACTUAL 

Year Ended December 31, 2013 
  

AMENDED 
             BUDGET 

 
 

ACTUAL 

FAVORABLE 
(UNFAVORABLE) 

VARIANCE 
Passenger Fares $     12,317,655 $      12,266,180 $            (51,475) 
Advertising 690,000 952,540 262,540 
Regional Transit Service 32,278,200 33,431,542 1,153,342 
Interest Income 120,881 151,610 30,729 
Sales Tax 57,003,863 63,407,486 6,403,623 
Operating Grants 8,491,987 10,491,482 1,999,495 
Capital Contributions 14,774,233 5,855,179 (8,919,054) 
Miscellaneous Revenues 6,872,629 4,096,480 (2,776,149) 
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of    
   Assets - (10,303) (10,303) 
TOTAL* $  132,549,448 $   130,642,196   $      (1,907,252) 

 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES BUDGETED VERSUS ACTUAL 

Year Ended December 31, 2013 
   

AMENDED 
             BUDGET 

 
 

          ACTUAL 

FAVORABLE 
(UNFAVORABLE) 

VARIANCE 
Personnel  $   80,922,514 $      74,160,441 $     6,762,073 
Fuel and Lubricants 7,627,344 7,409,160 218,184 
Supplies and Materials 5,983,707 5,011,098 972,609 
Contracts and Services 22,298,180 20,533,637 1,764,543 
Depreciation and 

- 14,746,142 (14,746,142)    Amortization 
Expense of Items  

- 224,061 (224,061)    Previously Deferred 
Capital Acquisitions 39,966,508 10,954,738 29,011,770 
Grant Exchange Funds 860,300 882,644 (22,344) 
TOTAL* $ 157,658,553 $    133,921,921 $    23,736,632  

 
*Expenses in excess of revenues, if any, were funded by reserves.  See accompanying notes to the 
financial statements. 
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Pierce Transit 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 
 

 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND NON-REVENUES BUDGETED VERSUS ACTUAL 

Year Ended December 31, 2012 
  

AMENDED 
             BUDGET 

 
 

ACTUAL 

FAVORABLE 
(UNFAVORABLE) 

VARIANCE 
Passenger Fares $     11,787,529 $      12,219,240 $           431,711 
Advertising 750,000 658,345 (91,655) 
Regional Transit Service 30,711,905 30,980,869 268,964 
Interest Income 121,676 198,874 77,198 
Sales Tax 65,992,241 65,190,106 (802,135) 
Operating Grants 9,049,602 10,180,153 1,130,551 
Capital Contributions 15,931,864 2,516,365 (13,415,499) 
Miscellaneous Revenues 12,897,500 4,934,093 (7,963,407) 
Gain (Loss)on Disposal of    
  Assets - (183,396) (183,396) 
TOTAL* $  147,242,317 $   126,694,649   $      (20,547,668) 

 
 
 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES BUDGETED VERSUS ACTUAL 
Year Ended December 31, 2012 

   
AMENDED 

             BUDGET 

 
 

          ACTUAL 

FAVORABLE 
(UNFAVORABLE) 

VARIANCE 
Personnel  $   80,148,950 $      76,615,405 $     3,533,545 
Fuel and Lubricants 7,829,808 8,698,804 (868,996) 
Supplies and Materials 6,238,197 5,683,897 554,300 
Contracts and Services 25,147,695 20,721,754 4,425,941 
Depreciation and 

- 13,431,897 (13,431,897)   Amortization 
Expense of Items  

- 126,620 (126,620)   Previously Deferred 
Capital Acquisitions 36,428,048 6,540,446 29,887,602 
Grant Exchange Funds 860,301 884,000 (23,699) 
TOTAL* $ 156,652,999 $    132,702,823 $    23,950,176  

 
*Expenses in excess of revenues, if any, were funded by reserves.  See accompanying notes to the 
financial statements. 
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Pierce Transit 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 
 

Following is a reconciliation of the revenues and expenses shown on the Budget vs. Actual Schedule 
and the Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position: 
 
REVENUES FROM THE COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,  
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION:   

          2013         2012 
Passenger Fares $     12,266,180  $     12,219,240 
Advertising 952,540  658,345 
Regional Transit Service 33,431,542  30,980,869 
Interest Income 151,610  198,874 
Misc. Non-Operating Revenue 4,096,480  4,934,093 
Operating Subsidies 73,898,968  75,370,259 
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assets (10,303)  (183,396) 
TOTAL $    124,787,017  $    124,178,284 
     
Revenues From the Budget vs. Actual Schedule:   
Capital Grants 5,855,179  2,516,365 
TOTAL 130,642,196  126,694,649 
GRAND TOTAL $   130,642,196  $   126,694,649 
    
 
EXPENSES FROM THE COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,  
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION:    

         2013         2012 
Operations $     64,793,783  $     62,391,140 
Maintenance 19,791,190  21,976,196 
Non-Vehicle Maintenance 4,599,756  4,458,279 
General & Administration 17,929,607  22,894,245 
Depreciation and Amortization 14,746,142  13,431,897 
Expense of Items Previously Deferred 224,061  126,620 
Grant Exchange Funds 882,644  884,000 
TOTAL $   122,967,183  $   126,162,377 
    
Expenses From the Budget vs. Actual Schedule   
Capital Acquisitions      10,954,738        6,540,446 
GRAND TOTAL $   133,921,921  $   132,702,823 

 
D.  ENCUMBRANCES - Pierce Transit encumbers all expenses for management information.  
Encumbrances do not, however, constitute a legal reduction of appropriations.  Accounts 
encumbered but not expended by the end of the budget year become an encumbrance of the 
following year's appropriations.  Encumbrances outstanding on December 31, 2013 total $5,349,341 
compared to $6,131,353 on December 31, 2012.  The majority of the encumbrances for 2013 result 
from capital projects in progress including farebox replacement, vanpool vehicle purchase, 
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Pierce Transit 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 
 

SHUTTLE vehicle purchase, and technology improvements.  Encumbrances are not shown on the 
financial statements. 
 
E.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - For purposes of the Comparative Statement of Cash 
Flows, Pierce Transit considers all highly liquid investments and deposits (including restricted assets) 
with a maturity period of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 
 
F.  INVESTMENTS - Investments are carried at fair value based on quoted market prices.   
 
G.  INVENTORIES - Inventory consists of fuel, lube and oil, antifreeze, transmission fluid, and 
repair parts held for consumption.  Purchases are recorded as increases to inventory.  Expenses are 
recorded as the materials are used.  Inventory is valued on the moving, weighted average cost 
method. 
 
H.  RESTRICTED ASSETS - Proceeds from bond issues and monies set aside for future 
payment of capital, debt service, and insurance claims are classified as restricted assets when their 
use is limited by bond covenants, grant restrictions, or resolutions.  Interest earnings on investment 
of these monies are also restricted. 
 
I.  CAPITAL ASSETS - Property, plant, and equipment are stated as historical cost or at fair 
market value as of the date contributed.  Replacements that improve or extend property life are 
capitalized.  Intangible assets are capitalized in accordance with GASB Statement 51. 
 
Assets are capitalized if they have individual values of at least $5,000 and the useful life extends over 
more than one fiscal year.   
 
Pierce Transit capitalizes miscellaneous expenses incurred in the acquisition, construction, or 
completion of capital assets.  Repairs and maintenance are expended as incurred. 
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Pierce Transit 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 
 

The Summary of Changes in Capital Assets for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively, follows:  

 
Summary of Changes in Capital Assets 

Year Ended December 31, 2013 
 
 

  Description 

Balance 
 January 1, 

2013   Additions   Retirements   Adjustment   

Balance 
December 31, 

2013 

Capital assets not being depreciated:                      

 Land  $ 19,380,991     $               -      $                   -  $                   -                 $  19,380,991 
 Work in Progress 13,152,159    10,954,738     (13,533,891)  10,573,006  
Total capital assets not being 
depreciated 32,533,150    10,954,738    -  (13,533,891)    29,953,997  
           
Depreciable capital assets:          
 Structures 70,037,604  422,675  -  -  70,460,279 
 Site Improvements  48,411,655   6,316,606  (1,157,150)  -   53,571,111  
 Machinery &  Equipment           129,910,568   6,570,849   (9,208,399)  -    127,273,018  
Total depreciable capital      
assets at cost 248,359,827    13,310,130   (10,365,549)   -       251,304,408  

Total Capital Assets (gross) 280,892,977   24,264,868      (10,365,549)  (13,533,891)   281,258,405  
           

Less accumulated depreciation for:          
 Structures (49,974,172)  (2,831,119)  -  -  (52,805,291) 
 Site Improvements (43,671,834)    (386,045)  896,266  -  (43,161,613) 
 Machinery & Equipment (74,167,410)  (11,528,978)  9,035,613  -  (76,660,775) 
Total accumulated 
depreciation                                  

                                           
(167,813,416)  (14,746,142)  9,931,879  -  (172,627,679) 

           
Total Capital Assets (net)  $113,079,561     $  9,518,726      $         (433,670)                  $  13,533,891)    $108,630,726  

    
*Adjustments include items previously deferred and items reclassified as assets from work in progress 
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Summary of Changes in Capital Assets 
Year Ended December 31, 2012 

 
 

  Description 

Balance 
 January 1, 

2012   Additions   Retirements   Adjustment   

Balance 
December 31, 

2012 

Capital assets not being depreciated:                      

 Land  $ 19,948,961   $               -                                            $    (567,970)              $                 -                 $    19,380,991 
 Work in Progress 9,144,036    6,540,446  -    (2,532,323)  13,152,159  
Total capital assets not being 
depreciated 29,092,997    6,540,446     (567,970)  (2,532,323)    32,533,150  
           
Depreciable capital assets:          
 Structures 70,210,513  -  (172,909)  -  70,037,604 
 Site Improvements  48,411,655   -  -  -   48,411,655  
 Machinery &  Equipment           133,410,575   2,626,673   (6,126,680)  -    129,910,568  
Total depreciable capital      
assets at cost 252,032,743    2,626,673   (6,299,589)   -       248,359,827  

Total Capital Assets (gross) 281,125,740     9,167,119    (6,867,559)  (2,532,323)   280,892,977  
           

Less accumulated depreciation for:          
 Structures (47,378,425)  (2,768,655)       172,908  -  (49,974,172) 
 Site Improvements (43,076,502)    (595,332)  -  -  (43,671,834) 
 Machinery & Equipment (70,226,181)  (10,067,910)  6,126,681  -  (74,167,410) 
Total accumulated 
depreciation                                  

                                           
(160,681,108)  (13,431,897)  6,299,589  -  (167,813,416) 

           
Total Capital Assets (net)  $120,444,632     $   4,264,778)      $   (567,970)                  $  (2,532,323)    $113,079,561  
 
*Adjustments include items previously deferred and items reclassified as assets from work in progress 

 
Work in progress as of 12/31/13 consists of the following projects: 
 
Buildings & Site Improvements $        631,327   
Equipment & Technology 9,217,027 
Park and Ride Lots/Transit Centers 724,652 
Total Work in Progress $    10,573,006 
 
A number of projects were in process at the end of 2013.  Commitments on capital projects as of 
December 31, 2013 totaled $3,960,571 and are itemized as follows:  buildings and site improvements 
$358,276 and equipment $3,602,295.  Projects underway as of December 31, 2013 included base 
facility improvements, a signal priority project, various technology upgrades or replacements, 
vanpool vehicles, SHUTTLE vehicles, and a CCTV project. 
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J.  DEPRECIATION - Depreciation is computed upon the straight-line method over established 
useful lives of individual assets.  Individual useful lives are assigned to new assets as follows: 
 
Land Not Depreciated 
Site Improvements 10 years 
Buildings 10 to 20 years 
Buses 6 to 12 years 
Machinery, Equipment, and Furniture  
Other Vehicles 

3 to 5 years 
5 years 

  
Assets acquired as used are assigned a useful life of one-half the new life.  Pierce Transit does not 
use salvage values in the calculation of depreciation. 
 
Costs incurred in project planning and design are deferred until projects are approved or abandoned.  
At that time, the related costs are transferred to the asset accounts or charged to expense as 
appropriate.  Plant and equipment, which are incomplete, unclassified, or otherwise not in service, 
and therefore not subject to depreciation, are deferred until they are placed in service.   
 
K.  UNEARNED REVENUE - Revenues are recorded when earned.  Unearned revenue as of 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $201,307 and $466,167, respectively.    
 
L.  NET POSITION - Net position is increased when revenues are greater than expenses and 
decreased when expenses exceed revenues.  Net position is reserved or designated to the extent that 
restricted assets exceed liabilities payable from those assets.  See Note 4 for details of reserved and 
designated net position.  Net position includes the following subsidies of operations: 
 

• Sales Tax - In February 2002, Pierce County voters approved a ballot measure increasing the 
local sales tax support from .3% to .6%.  The sales tax increase went into effect July 1, 2002.  
The sales tax increase replaces funding that was lost when the Motor Vehicle Excise Tax 
(MVET) was eliminated in 2000.  The sales tax collected in 2013 totaled $63,407,486 
resulting in a less than three percent decrease from 2012 sales tax revenue of $65,190,106. 
On May 8, 2012, Pierce Transit’s service and taxing boundaries were reduced from serving 
19 nineteen jurisdictions to serving fourteen jurisdictions.  The sales tax collection boundary 
reduction went into effect on October 1, 2012.  

 
• Federal Operating Assistance - Federal operating grants. 

 
• State Operating Assistance - Operating grants from the State of Washington. 

 
• Capital Contributions - Donated assets or grants for the acquisition of capital assets.  

 
 
M. VACATION AND SICK LEAVE - Employees accrue vacation by reason of tenure at annual 
rates ranging from 12 to 31 days per year.  Employees are not allowed to accumulate more than 2 
years of vacation leave accrual at any point in time.  Total vacation accruals are listed as follows: 
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       2013            2012 
Vacation-Current     $    2,556,214    $    2,728,108  
Vacation-Non-Current         284,024         303,123  
  Total Vacation Leave Liability   $    2,840,238   $    3,031,231  

 
Employees accumulate sick leave at the rate of 8 hours per month with no maximum accumulation 
specified.  Total sick leave accruals as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 were $6,312,374 and 
$6,718,426 respectively.  Sick leave is recorded as an expense at the time of payment, which occurs 
upon usage or termination.  Fifty percent of the value is paid upon retirement or death of the 
employee, 20% is paid upon termination for any other reason.  The estimated liability for these sick 
leaves payouts is as follows: 
     2013      2012 
Current Liability based on usage or terminations $  1,423,647  $  1,560,798 
Non-current Liability based on expected future payoffs           1,268,846           1,363,201 
  Total Sick Leave Liability      $  2,692,493       $  2,923,999 
 
The portion of the accrued vacation and sick leave benefits estimated to be paid more than 12 
months from year-end is recorded as a long-term liability.  A reconciliation of current and long-term 
employee leave payable follows: 
           2013             2012 
Balance beginning of year $  4,288,907    $  4,802,816   
Employee leave earned 3,690,235  3,756,999 
Employee leave paid  (3,999,280)   (4,270,908) 
  Current Employee Leave Payable  $  3,979,862  $  4,288,907 
 
           2013             2012 
Balance beginning of year $  1,666,324    $  1,689,739   
Employee leave earned 1,446,993    1,635,916   
Employee leave paid (1,560,447)  (1,659,331) 
  Long-term Employee Leave Payable  $  1,552,870  $  1,666,324 
 
2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS     
  
Cash and investments are classified in the accompanying financial statements as of December 31, 
2013 and 2012, respectively as follows: 
 
Composition of Cash and Cash Equivalents:    
        2013       2012 
Demand Deposits    $   6,952,893   $   4,561,531  
Investments having original maturities of less than 3 months -         - 
  Total Cash and Cash Equivalents    $  6,952,893  $   4,561,531  

 
All bank deposits are entirely insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and by the 
Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission.  
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The investment practices of Pierce Transit are governed by an investment policy adopted by the 
Board of Commissioners. The policy addresses interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of 
credit risk.  Allowable investments are limited as follows: 
 
• Obligations of the United States Treasury. 
• Obligations of agencies of the Federal Government. 
• Certificates of deposit issued by commercial banks and thrift institutes that are public 

depositories of the State of Washington. 
• Repurchase agreements collateralized by liquid, marketable securities having a fair value of at 

least 102% of the repurchase price. 
• Banker’s acceptance issued by any qualified depository in the State of Washington or by the 30 

largest foreign banks and the 30 largest domestic banks as listed by the American Banking 
Association. 

• Washington State Local Government Investment Pool.  The Washington State Investment 
Board regulates pool investments.  The fair value of the shares in the investment pool is the 
same as the value of the pool shares. 

• Commercial paper limited to 15% of the total portfolio, with no more than 5% with any one 
individual issuer. 

 
During 2013 and 2012, Pierce Transit's portfolio complied with the investment policies discussed 
above.   Management intends to hold time deposits and securities until maturity.  Investments are 
stated at fair value on the balance sheet.  Changes in fair value are included as revenue in the 
financial statements.  The fair value of securities is based on quoted market prices.  The fair value of 
the position in the Washington Local Government Investment Pool is the same as the value of the 
pool shares.  No investment losses occurred during 2013 or 2012. 
 
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes 
in market interest rates.  Pierce Transit’s investment policy is designed to manage the exposure to 
interest rate risk through diversification and by purchasing a combination of shorter and longer term 
investments that mature evenly over time.  Pierce Transit’s policy does not allow any investments 
over two years in maturity.  Pierce Transit’s weighted average maturity for December 31, 2013 and 
2012 was 7 days and 8 days, respectively.  
 
Information of the sensitivity of fair values of investments to interest rate fluctuations is provided by 
the following table showing maturities of all investments held by Pierce Transit as of December 31, 
2013 and 2012.  
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 Fair                          2013 Investment Maturities (in months) 

Investment Type Value  0-3 4-6 6-12 12-24 Total 

Local Government         

    Investment Pool $ 96,093,753    $ 96,093,753  $                - $               -  $               -                  $  96,093,753  

U. S. Agencies   999,750   -   - 999,750 -    999,750 

  $97,093,503   $ 96,093,753   $   1,000,000  $               -   $               -     $ 97,093,503  
 

 Fair                          2012 Investment Maturities (in months) 

Investment Type Value  0-3 4-6 6-12 12-24 Total 

Local Government         

    Investment Pool $87,770,470    $87,770,470  $                - $              -  $               -                  $  87,770,470  

U. S. Agencies   1,000,000   -     1,000,000  -   -      1,000,000  

  $88,770,470   $ 87,770,470  $  1,000,000  $             -  $               -          $88,770,470  
 
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical 
rating organization.  The Washington State Local Government Investment Pool is an unrated 2a-7 
like pool, as defined by GASB 31.  As of December 31, 2013, one percent of Pierce Transit’s 
investments are in one of the following U.S. Agencies: Federal Home Loan Banks (FHLB) and 
Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA).  All the U.S. Agencies held by Pierce Transit have 
an AAA rating from Standard & Poor’s and Aaa from Moody’s.   
   
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
Pierce Transit's investment policy requires diversification of investments across security types, 
financial institutions, and maturities as follows: 
 
• No more than 50% of the Agency's total portfolio may be invested in a single type of security. 
• No more than 50% of the Agency's total portfolio may be purchased from a single financial 

institution with the exception of the Washington State Local Government Investment Pool. 
• No more than 25% of the Agency's total portfolio may be invested in any given issue with a 

specific maturity.  Investment maturities may not exceed two years. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk for investments generally applies to direct investments in marketable securities.  
With the exception of the Washington State Local Government Investment Pool, Pierce Transit’s 
marketable securities are insured, registered, or held by Pierce Transit or its agent in Pierce Transit’s 
name.  Pierce Transit’s overnight repurchase agreements are collateralized by liquid, marketable 
securities having a market value of at least 102% of the repurchase price.  Custodial credit risk does 
not apply to Pierce Transit’s indirect investment in securities through the use of the local 
government investment pool.  
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3.  RECEIVABLES 
 
Amounts due to Pierce Transit for year ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 (net of uncollectible) 
are detailed as follows: 
 
RECEIVABLES    
    2013  2012 
Accounts Receivable   $ 2,288,413   $    1,045,535  
Interest Receivable   -  116 
Sales Tax Receivable  11,391,413  10,880,016 
Due from Other Governments:     
Federal Operating Assistance   1,918,456  1,632,805 
Other Operating Partnerships   986,920  1,235,162 
Fuel Tax Refund & CNG Credit   239,882  1,119,866 
Regional Transit Service Revenues 6,623,295  8,463,702 
Capital Grants 30,508  52,184 
Other Capital Partnerships     24,590     49,737 
Regional Transit Service Revenues -  - 
      Total Receivables $23,503,477   $24,479,123 
 
 
4.  RESTRICTED AND UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION 
 
Pierce Transit's Board of Commissioners has established reserve policies for Pierce Transit's capital 
and insurance programs.  The net position amount designated for insurance is set at a level to 
adequately protect the Agency from self-insurance risks.  The amount designated for capital is set at 
a level equal to ten percent of the six year average annual capital expenses plus fifty percent of the 
average annual grant funding programmed in the six year financial plan.  Funds designated for 
capital are intended to fund currently approved capital projects and to replace capital equipment and 
facilities as they wear out.  The Board of Commissioners as a part of the budget process reviews the 
level of the self-insurance and capital designations annually.   
 
A.  RESTRICTED FOR CAPITAL - Net position designated for capital was $28,196,953 for 
2013 and $21,748,469 for 2012. 
 
B.  RESTRICTED FOR INSURANCE - Pierce Transit's Board of Commissioners established a 
self-insurance fund in 1982 (See Note 7).  Net position designated for unemployment, liability self-
insurance, and workers compensation for the periods ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 were 
$2,362,636 and $1,050,634, respectively. 
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5.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 

A.  RETIREMENT - Pierce Transit contributes monthly to two separate retirement systems.  
Both systems are cost sharing multi-employer defined benefit public employee retirement systems.  
The Agency contributions, as well as employee contributions, are based on the gross pay of an 
employee.  Tacoma Transit employees electing to retain Tacoma Employees' Retirement System 
(TERS) when Pierce Transit took over the operations of Tacoma Transit in 1980 are covered by 
TERS which is a defined benefit plan.  The Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) covers all 
other employees. 
    
Pierce Transit participates in PERS Plan 1, PERS Plan 2, and PERS Plan 3.  The PERS system is 
comprised of three separate plans for membership purposes:  Plans 1 and 2 are defined benefit plans 
and Plan 3 is a combination defined benefit/defined contribution plan. Employees joining PERS 
after 10/1/77 are members of Plan 2 or Plan 3.  As of September 1, 2002 employees have the 
irrevocable option of choosing membership in either PERS Plan 2 or PERS Plan 3.  This option 
must be exercised within 90 days of employment.  An employee is enrolled in Plan 2 until a choice is 
made.  Employees who fail to make a choice within 90 days of employment default to PERS Plan 3.   
PERS is mandatory for all regular employees except for personnel working less than 70 hours per 
month in five months in a calendar year. 
 
Information regarding the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) is presented in the State 
Department of Retirement Systems Annual Financial Report.  A copy of the report may be obtained 
by contacting the Department of Retirement Systems, 6825 Capital Boulevard, P.O. Box 48380, 
Olympia, WA 98504-8389.  Information regarding the Tacoma Employees' Retirement System can 
be found in its annual report and may be obtained by writing to the Tacoma Employees' Retirement 
System, 747 Market Street, and Room 1544, Tacoma, WA 98402.  Ten year historical trend 
information showing the retirement systems' progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay 
benefits when due is presented in the PERS and TERS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of 
June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 respectively. 
 
The payroll for Pierce Transit employees covered by these retirement systems was $50,156,438 for 
the year ended December 31, 2013 with a total payroll for 2013 of $52,889,537.  Payroll for Pierce 
Transit employees covered by retirement systems as of December 31, 2012 was $51,320,096, with a 
total payroll of $54,207,729.  Employees covered by the Tacoma Employees Retirement Systems 
(TERS) are required by State statute and City ordinance to contribute 9.20% of gross wages to the 
plan with 10.8% being contributed by the employer.  Employees covered by the Public Employees 
Retirement System (PERS) are required by State statute to contribute 6% of gross wages for Plan 1 
participants and 4.92% for Plan 2 participants.  Pierce Transit is required by the same authority to 
contribute the remaining amounts necessary to pay benefits when due.  The employer’s contribution 
for PERS employees was 7.21% through June 30, 2013, 9.18% through August 31, 2013, increasing 
to 9.21% through December 31, 2013.  PERS Plan 3 employees can contribute 5% to 15% of their 
gross wages.  
 
 Pierce Transit does not provide any post employment benefits for early retirement, post-retirement, 
or either voluntary or involuntary terminations. 
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A summary of each plan's provisions and requirements follows: 
 
 
 TERS 
Vesting 5 years 
Retirement Eligible Age 60, regardless of service credit 
 Age 57, with 10 years of service credit 
 Age 50, with 20 years of service credit 
 Any age with 30 years of service credit 
  
Retirement Benefits 2% of highest consecutive 24 month average final 

compensation (AFC) multiplied by years of service, up to 
60% of AFC 

  
Other Benefits Death and Disability 
 

 . 
 PLAN 1 PLAN 2 PLAN 3 
Vesting 5 years 5 years 10 years 

 
Retirement 
Eligibility 

Age 60, regardless of 
service credit 

Age 65, with 5 years of 
service credit 

Age 65, with 10 years of service credit 

 Age 55, with 25 years 
of service credit 

Age 55 with 20 years of 
service credit 
 

Age 55 with 10 years of service credit 

Retirement 
  Benefits 

Any age with 30 years 
of service credit 

  

    
 2% of highest 

consecutive month 
average final 
compensation (AFC) 
multiplied by years of 
service, up to 60% of 
AFC 

2% of highest 
consecutive 60 month 
average final 
compensation (AFC) 
multiplied by years of 
service.  Benefits on 
retirements prior to age 
65 are actuarially reduced 

1% of highest consecutive 60 month 
average final compensation (AFC) 
multiplied by years of service.  
Benefits on retirements prior to age 
65 are actuarially reduced 

    
Benefits Death and Disability Death and Disability Death and Disability 

 
During 2011, 2012, and 2013, Pierce Transit and its employees made the required contributions.  
Contribution amounts and rates expressed as a percentage of the covered payroll for the three years 
ended December 31 are as follows: 
 
 
 
 

39



Pierce Transit 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 
 

 
         PERS Plan 1          PERS Plan 2 PERS Plan 3             TERS 
  Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount 
Employee 6.00% $     54,289 4.64% $   2,206,159 5-15% $    249,892 8.74% $     39,906  
Employer 7.25% 54,772 7.25% 3,223,001 7.25% 264,887 10.26%             46,846 
 Total 2011  $   109,061   $   5,429,160  $    514,779  $     86,752 
         
Employee 6.00%  $     38,766 4.64% $   2,156,098 5-15% $    215,620 9.20% $     41,446  
Employer 7.21% 46,524 7.21% 3,349,057 7.21% 266,884 10.26%             48,654 
 Total 2012  $     85,290   $   5,505,155  $    482,504  $     90,100 
         
Employee 6.00% $     36,712 4.92% $  2,180,115 5-15% $    198,337 9.20% $     35,112  
Employer 9.21% 49,577 9.21% 3,730,060 9.21% 287,914 10.80%             41,219 
 Total 2013  $     86,289   $   5,910,175  $    486,251  $     76,331 

 
 
B.  DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN - Pierce Transit offers its employees a deferred 
compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. Plans are offered 
and administered through Great West Life & Annuity Insurance Company and ICMA Retirement 
Corporation.  Pierce Transit contributes from 1% to 5.5% of the annual salary of all participating 
employees.  In 2013, Pierce Transit contributed $1,642,829.  Pierce Transit contributed $1,686,520 
to this plan in 2012.   The plan is available to all employees on a voluntary basis and permits them to 
defer a portion of their salaries until future years.  The deferred compensation is not available to 
employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.  Beginning in fiscal year 
1998, existing assets in the plan are held in a qualified custodial account.  The custodian holds the 
Plan's assets for the exclusive benefit of participants and beneficiaries.  The Plan's assets are not the 
legal property of Pierce Transit and are not subject to claims of the Agency’s creditors.  Therefore, 
deferred compensation funds are not shown on the balance sheet. 
 
6. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Grants -Pierce Transit has received several federal grants for specific purposes that are subject to 
review and audit.  Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursements for expenses disallowed 
under the terms of the grants.  In the opinion of management, such disallowances, if any, will be 
immaterial and will not have any significant effect on the financial position of Pierce Transit. 
 
Smart Card (ORCA)-Since 1996, seven regional transit agencies have been developing a regional 
smart card fare payment system. Participating agencies include Pierce Transit, King County Metro, 
Sound Transit, Everett Transit, Washington State Ferries, Kitsap Transit and Community Transit.  A 
smart card is an intelligent fare card that stores information including fare type and stored value in 
either cash or transit passes.  The smart card system has been named One Regional Card for All 
(ORCA) and simplifies and establishes a common, non-cash fare system throughout the region.  The 
original agreement, signed in April 2003, established the respective roles and responsibilities of the 
Agencies in the development and operating phases of the ORCA system.  The system was phased in 
beginning in April 2009 and an amended agreement establishing the design, implementation, 
operation and maintenance of the ORCA was signed.  This amended agreement further defines and 
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establishes a framework for the operating phase of the system.  The participating agencies have 
committed to utilizing the system for a minimum of 10 years and funding proportionate shares of 
regionally shared costs.   
 
The system is governed by a Joint Board consisting of one representative from each participating 
agency.  The funds collected through the sale of ORCA fare media to the public by participating 
agencies is remitted to Sound Transit acting as fiscal agent under the terms of the interlocal 
agreement.  Fare revenue is apportioned by the fiscal agent and remitted to the participating agency 
that provided the transit service. 
 
Pierce Transit’s financial statements reflect its portion of ORCA fare revenues and expenses.  
ORCA fare revenue as of December 31, 2013 was $4,112,809 with operating expenses of $291,297. 
In 2012, ORCA revenue totaled $4,185,855 and operating expense of $388,997.  Pierce Transit’s 
share of funds held by the fiscal agent as of December 31, 2013, and 2012 reported within Pierce 
Transit’s financial statements, amounted to $489,339 and $376,725 respectively.  Other than the 
funds held by the fiscal agent Pierce Transit has no equity interest. 
  
7.  INSURANCE  
 
For auto/general liability and public officials’ claims prior to January 1, 2010, Pierce Transit was self-
insured with a retention of $1,000,000 and excess insurance up to $16 million.  As of January 1, 
2010, Pierce Transit became a full member of the Washington State Transit Insurance Pool (WSTIP) 
and now retains first-dollar coverage for auto/general up to $12 million per occurrence.  As a 
member of the Pool, the Agency is able to take advantage of collective retentions, competitive re-ins 
urance rates and an exchange of best practices that help to reduce liability exposure.  In addition to 
auto/general liability, WSTIP polices include property coverage of up to $350 million ($10,000 
deductible) per occurrence, crime coverage of up to $1 million ($10,000 deductible) per loss, cyber-
liability coverage up to $20 million, and public officials’ liability coverage of up to $12 million 
($5,000 deductible) per occurrence.  Pierce Transit continues to insure pollution/underground 
storage tank liability through an independent broker, with coverage up to $1 million ($25,000 
deductible) per occurrence.   
 
Pierce Transit continues to be self-insured for unemployment compensation and workers’ 
compensation (industrial insurance), with excess workers’ compensation (EWC) retained consistent 
with statutory requirements. Self-insurance assets have been set aside for these workers’ 
compensation claims, which are administered by a third-party administrator. 
  
On December 31, 2013, the self-insurance assets totaled $3,798,012, of which a liability of 
$1,299,098 is recorded for workers’ compensation and unemployment compensation claims for 
which it may be ultimately liable, including a provision for claims incurred but not yet reported.  As 
of December 31, 2012, Pierce Transit’s self-insurance assets totaled $2,811,113 of which a liability of 
$1,587,733 was recorded as a provision for liability claims.  These liabilities are Pierce Transit's best 
estimate of claims based upon available information.  No outstanding liabilities have been removed 
from the balance sheet due to the purchase of annuity contracts from third parties in the name of 
claimants. 
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A reconciliation of claims liabilities follows: 
            2013             2012 
Balance beginning of year $   1,587,733      $   1,310,157     
Provision for incurred claims 1,980,890         3,236,159        
Payments made for claims    (2,269,525)     (2,958,583) 
Claims liabilities year ended $   1,299,098  $   1,587,733 
 
8.  DEBT 
 
Pierce Transit did not have any debt as of December 31, 2013 or December 31, 2012. 
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This part of Pierce Transit’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for 
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary 
information says about Pierce Transit’s overall financial health.  This information presented in this section has not 
been audited. 
 
Contents Page       
Financial Trends:  Schedules contain trend information to help reader understand Pierce Transit’s financial 
performance has changed over time. 
  

Net Assets by Component 44 
Expenses Comparisons by Type 44 
Changes in Net Assets 45 

 
Revenue Capacity:  Schedules contain information to assist the reader assess Pierce Transit’s revenue sources. 
  
 Revenue and Subsidies Comparisons 46 
 Fixed Route Farebox Recovery 46 
 Fare History 47 
 Taxable Sales Comparisons for Pierce County 47 

 
Debt Capacity: Schedules help the reader assess Pierce Transit’s ability to issue debt. 
 

Legal Debt Margin 48 
Ratio of General Bonded Debt to Assessed Value 48 
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt 49 
 

Demographic and Economic Information: Schedules present demographic and economic 
indicators to help reader understand the environment in which Pierce Transit financial activities 
take place. 
 

Pierce County Demographic and Economic Information  49 
Principal Employers  50 
       

Operating Information:  Schedules contain service and operating data to help reader understand how 
the financial report relates to the service and activities provided by Pierce Transit. 
 
 Pierce Transit Employees by Function 50  

Statistics by Mode 51-54 
Key Performance Measures 55 
Vehicles Available for Maximum Service 55 
 

Grant Information: Schedule shows reader Pierce Transit’s grant history 
  

Capital Grant History 56 
 

Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant years. 
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Financial Trends 

Net Assets by Component  
2004 - 2013 

 Invested in   
 Capital Assets Unrestricted  Total 

2004 106,752,212 75,701,262 182,453,474 
2005 115,927,548 89,543,932 205,471,480 
2006 116,669,627 107,790,306 224,459,933 
2007 120,825,987 119,269,028 240,095,015 
2008 128,772,977 113,886,963 242,659,940 
2009 126,721,089 107,286,883 234,007,973 
2010 127,352,648 102,221,188 229,573,836 
2011 120,444,631 98,748,344 219,192,975 
2012 113,079,561 106,645,685 219,725,246 
2013 108,630,726 118,769,536 227,400,262 

 
 
 

Financial Trends 
Expense Comparisons by Type 

2004 – 2013 
 

 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
Personnel $53,276,898 $57,785,602 $60,736,927 $67,667,670 $77,278,554 $79,346,300 $82,910,872 $82,413,780 $76,615,405 $74,160,441 

Fuel & 
Lubricants 3,731,581 5,386,453 5,917,776 4,763,794 7,123,019 5,718,378 7,409,316 10,620,144 8,698,804 7,409,160 
Supplies & 

Materials 4,944,439 4,851,849 4,636,806 5,962,609 5,921,096 5,246,793 5,534,848 6,200,926 5,683,897 5,011,098 
Contracts & 

Services 13,770,279 13,925,196 15,974,894 17,065,225 18,258,165 18,273,761 22,341,235 22,749,993 20,721,754 20,533,637 
Depreciation & 

Amortization 12,274,862 12,567,124 13,681,147 15,745,786 14,117,400 14,005,135 12,828,624 14,524,411 13,431,897 14,746,142 
Capital 

Acquisition 21,187,250 21,717,527 14,426,046 20,005,358 23,593,957 13,182,990 13,841,193 8,850,528 6,540,446 10,954,738 
s on Disposal 

of Assets - - - - - - - - - - 

Debt Service 
Principal 355,000 365,000 380,000 395,000 415,000 1,335,000           - - - - 

Interest 
Expense 130,548 117,413 103,543 94,799 77,616 45,252 - - - - 

Previously 
Deferred Items 1,277 61,865 50,590 132,357 234,942 2,460,260 381,012 909,998 126,620 224,061 

Grant 
Exchange Funds  1,714,333 711,191 1,758,451 860,301 952,540 1,113,622 1,106,447 884,000 882,644 

Total $109,672,134 $118,492,362 $116,618,920 $133,591,049 $147,880,050 $140,566,409 $146,360,722 $147,046,227 $132,702,823 $133,921,921 
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 Financial Trends 
Changes in Net Position 

2004 – 2013 
           
Operating Revenue 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Passenger Fares     $9,368,453  $9,096,278     $11,515,007  $12,372,165  $13,882,370  $15,460,517  $14,504,805  $13,502,385  12,219,240          12,266,180          

Advertising           442,378              851,602  
       

1,094,081              816,563  
            

968,104  
            

905,896  
            

1,120,406  
            

738,817  
            

658,345  
            

952,540  

Regional Transit Service 
      

13,540,481          14,839,566  
     

15,091,604          16,894,606  
        

17,443,379  
        

19,303,747  
        

24,128,368  
        

30,257,858  
        

30,980,869  
        

33,431,542  

  Total Operating Revenue 
      

23,351,312          24,787,446  
     

27,700,692          30,083,334  
        

32,293,853  
        

35,670,160  
        

39,753,579  
        

44,499,060  
        

43,858,454  
        

46,650,262  
Non-Operating Revenue           

Sales Tax  
      

61,770,952          69,126,119  
     

74,593,386          77,156,577  
        

71,752,351  
        

63,335,030  
        

65,338,852  
        

64,512,697  
        

65,190,106  
        

63,407,486  
MVET                   -                       -                     -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -    

Operating Grants 
        

4,706,649           7,455,975  
       

7,028,817           6,919,290  
         

9,505,308  
         

13,318,595  
         

9,925,000  
         

9,982,473  
         

10,180,153  
         

10,491,482  

Investment Income 
        

1,218,453           2,393,870  
       

4,161,786           5,590,687  
         

3,220,825  
         

1,014,361           346,746  
         

100,949           198,874           151,610  

Miscellaneous Income           947,521           1,005,346           969,860           1,401,198           805,296  
         

1,149,909  
         

3,209,822  
         

5,280,795  
         

4,934,093  
         

4,096,482  
Gain(Loss)on Disposal of 
Assets             91,584              350,686           284,261              108,715  

            
122,190  

            
91,084  

            
368,928  

            
99,912  

            
(183,396)  

            
(10,303)  

  Total Non-Operating Revenue 
      

68,735,159          80,331,996  
     

87,038,110          91,176,467  
        

85,405,970  
        

78,908,979  
        

79,189,348  
        

79,976,826  
        

80,319,830  
        

78,136,757  

      Total Revenue 
      

92,086,471        105,119,442  
    

114,738,802        121,259,801  
      

117,699,823  
      

114,579,139  
      

118,942,927  
      

124,475,886  
      

124,178,284  
      

124,787,019  
Operating Expense           

Fixed Route 
      

60,018,905          66,764,882  
     

70,476,920          76,043,175  
        

86,654,338  
        

86,680,889  
        

96,282,650  
        

98,836,124  
        

90,192,642  
        

86,365,065  

Demand Response 
      

12,772,330          12,359,269  
     

13,856,252          15,807,504  
        

17,637,236  
        

17,806,552  
        

17,597,639  
        

18,513,933  
        

17,229,379  
        

16,609,716  

Vanpool 
        

2,931,961           2,824,949  
       

2,933,231           3,608,619  
         

4,289,260  
         

4,097,791  
         

4,315,982  
         

4,634,786  
         

4,297,219  
         

4,139,555  

Depreciation & Amortization 
      

12,274,862          12,567,124  
     

13,681,147          15,745,786  
        

14,117,400  14,005,135  12,828,624  14,524,411  13,431,897  14,746,142  

  Total Operating Expense 
      

87,998,058          94,516,224  
    

100,947,550        111,205,084  
      

122,698,234  
      

122,590,367  
      

131,024,895  
      

136,509,254  
      

125,151,137  
      

121,860,478  
Non-Operating Expense           

Expense of Deferred Items               1,277               61,865             50,590              132,357  
            

234,942  
            

2,460,260 
            

381,012 
            

909,998 
            

126,620 
            

224,061 

Interest Expense           130,548              117,413           103,543               94,799  
             

77,616  
             

45,252               -               -               -               -  

Grant Exchange Funds                   -             1,714,333           711,191           1,758,451           860,301           952,540  
         

1,113,622  
         

1,106,447           884,000           882,644  

  Total Non-Operating Expense           131,825           1,893,611           865,324           1,985,607  
         

1,172,859  
         

3,458,052  
         

1,496,634  
         

2,016,445  
         

1,010,620  
         

1,106,705  

    Total Expense 
      

88,129,883          96,409,835  
    

101,812,874        113,190,691  
      

123,871,093  
      

126,048,419  
      

132,519,529  
      

138,525,699  
      

126,162,377  
      

122,967,183  
           

Net Expense 
        

3,956,588           8,709,607  
     

12,925,928           8,069,110  
         

(6,171,270)  
         

(11,469,280)  
         

(13,576,602)  
         

(14,049,813)  
         

(1,984,093)  
         

1,819,836  

Capital Grants 
      

16,970,314          14,308,399  
       

5,530,123           8,098,374  
         

8,736,195  
         

2,817,313  
         

9,142,465  
         

3,668,952  
         

2,516,365  
         

5,855,179  

Change in Net Position $20,926,902  $23,018,006  $18,456,051        $16,167,484        $2,564,925  
      

$(8,651,967)  
      

$(4,434,137)  
      

$(10,380,861)  
       

$(532,272)  
       

$7,675,015  
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Revenue Capacity 

Revenue and Subsidies Comparisons 
2004 – 2013 

 
 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Passenger Fares $9,368,453 $9,096,278 $11,515,007 $12,372,165 13,882,370 $15,460,517 $14,504,805 $13,502,385 $12,219,240 $12,266,180 
School Service - -         

Regional  
Transit Fares 13,540,481 14,839,566 15,091,604 16,894,606 17,443,379 19,303,747 24,128,368 30,257,858 30,980,869 33,431,542 

Advertising 442,379 851,602 1,094,081 816,563 968,104 905,896 1,120,406 738,817 658,345 952,540 
Interest Income 1,218,453 2,393,870 4,161,786 5,590,687 3,220,825 1,014,361 346,746 99,912 198,874 151,610 

Sales Tax 61,770,952 69,126,119 74,593,386 77,156,577 71,752,351 63,335,030 65,338,852 64,512,697 65,190,106 63,407,486 
MVET - - - - - - - - - - 

Operating 
Subsidies 4,706,649 7,455,975 7,028,817 6,919,290 9,505,308 13,318,595 9,925,000 9,982,473 10,180,153 10,491,482 

Capital Grants 16,970,314 14,308,399 5,530,123 8,098,374 8,736,195 2,817,313 9,142,465 3,668,952 2,516,365 5,855,179 
Gain on 

Disposal of 
Assets 91,584 350,686 816,663 108,715 122,190 91,084 368,928 99,912 (183,396) (10,303) 

Miscellaneous 947,521 1,005,345 969,860 1,041,198 805,296 1,149,909 3,209,822 5,280,795 4,934,093 4,096,480 
           

Total $109,056,786 $119,427,840 $120,801,327 $129,358,175 $126,436,018 $117,396,452 $128,085,392 $128,144,838 $126,694,649 $130,642,196 
 

 
 
 
 

Revenue Capacity 
Fixed Route Farebox Recovery 

2004 - 2013 

 Year  
Farebox 
Recovery 

 2004                 16%  
 2005                 14%  
 2006                 17%  
 2007                 16%  
 2008                 16%  
 2009                 19%  
 2010                 17%  
 2011                 15%  
 2012                 16%  
 2013                 18%  
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Revenue Capacity 
Fare History 
2004 - 2013 

 
 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Cash Fares           
Adult $   1.25 $   1.25 $   1.50 $   1.50 $   1.50 $     1.75 $    2.00 $   2.00 $   2.00 $   2.00 
Senior/Disabled/Youth 0.50 0.50 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 

           
           

Passes           

Adult Pass 45.00 45.00 54.00 54.00 54.00 63.00 72.00 72.00 72.00 72.00 
Senior/Disabled Pass 18.00 18.00 27.00 27.00 27.00 27.00 27.00 27.00 27.00 27.00 
Transfers Free Free Free Free Free Free Free Free Free Free 

 
 
 
 

 
Revenue Capacity 

2004 & 2013 Taxable Sales Comparisons 
 Pierce County 

 
 2004  2013 

 Taxable Sales Sales Tax  Taxable Sales Sales Tax 
Retail Trade  $ 5,868,240,440      $ 35,209,443    $  6,321,236,862     $  32,882,748 
Services        926,564,280        5,559,386          2,147,970,780      11,173,633 
Contracting        1,647,225,387        9,883,352           1,822,350,688       9,479,774 
Manufacturing        308,854,760          1,853,129              231,100,825         1,202,175 
Transportation/Utilities        514,757,933           3,088,548                52,829,278            274,815 
Wholesaling        720,661,107        4,323,967              708,410,590         3,685,115 
Finance/Insurance/Real Estate        205,903,173           1,235,419              899,448,382         4,678,884 
Other Business          102,951,587           617,710   5,832,565            30,342 
TOTAL $ 10,295,158,667      $ 61,770,952    $  12,189,179,970       $63,407,486 
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Debt Capacity 
Legal Debt Margin 

2013 
 

Non-voted 
 Maximum Debt 

Capacity* 
Assessed Valuation  $34,481,781,096  $34,236,337,504 
Debt Limitation (%)* .375%  1.250% 
Debt Limitation ($) $    129,306,679  $    427,954,219 
Less: Outstanding Debt -  - 
Debt Margin $    129,306,679  $    427,954,219 

 
* The maximum debt capacity includes both non-voted and voted debt.  All outstanding debt is non-voted. 
 

 
 
 

Debt Capacity 
Ratio of General Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and Net Bonded Debt per Capita 

2004 – 2013 

December 31 Population 
Assessed Value 
(In Thousands) 

General 
Bonded Debt 

% Ratio of 
Bonded 
Debt to 

Assessed 
Value 

Bonded 
Debt Per 

Capita 
2004 702,060   29,619,949   2,890,000 .01  4.11 
2005 705,018   32,815,525   2,525,000 .01  3.58 
2006 721,445   35,336,989   2,145,000 .01  2.97 
2007 732,435   42,915,280   1,750,000 .01  2.38 
2008 749,350   50,503,813   1,335,000 .01  1.78 
2009 813,600   48,742,260   3,910,000 .02  6.07 
2010 795,225   45,155,305   - - - 
2011 802,150   41,959,937   - - - 
2012 808,200   33,245,935   - - - 
2013 814,500   34,481,782   - - - 
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Debt Capacity 
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt 

2013 
 

- Net Bonded Debt 
Outstanding 

Percentage 
Applicable* 

Authority 
Share 

Pierce Transit $                  - 100.00% $      - 
City of Tacoma 245,900,000 30.54%  75,097,860    
Pierce County 183,068,506 42.27% 77,383,057 
   $152,480,917 
    PTBA Population 
 

  560,000 

Direct Debt as a % of 
Personal Income 
Direct and Overlapping 
Debt per Capita 

             .0000% 
 
 
$              - 

     
* Applicable percentage determined by the ratio of assessed valuation in overlapping unit to assessed valuation in Pierce Transit’s service 

area. 
 
 
 

Demographic and Economic Information 
Pierce County Demographic and Economic Information 

2004 – 2013 
 

Fiscal 
Year Dec 31 

Pierce 
County 

Population 

Median 
Household 
Income (1) 

Personal 
Income (2) 

 (In 
Thousands) 

Per Capita 
Personal 
Income 

School 
Enrollment (3) 

Unemployment 
Rate (4) 

2004 744,000  49,151   23,273,083  31,281 140,626 7.1 
2005 755,900  50,678   24,440,169  32,448 139,032 5.9 
2006 773,500  55,506   26,769,608  35,054 139,434 5.1 
2007 790,500  56,426   28,949,941  37,446 139,945 4.7 
2008 805,400  57,674     31,046,350  39,444 141,246 5.7 
2009 813,600  56,555   32,332,969  40,577 141,182 9.3 
2010 795,225  55,531  32,212,709  40,500 138,687 9.5     
2011 802,150  56,114  33,117,849  40,992 132,480 8.5     
2012 808,200 57,162  35,232,946 N/A 127,399 8.5 
2013 813,000 N/A   N/A  N/A N/A 7.4     

       
 
Sources:  (1) Washington State Office of Financial Management  (4) Washington State Department of Employment 
               (2) US Census Bureau     (*) Not Available 
 3) Superintendent of Public Instruction       
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Demographic and Economic Information 
 

Principal Employers 
Comparisons of Employees and Percent of Total Employment 

2013 and 2004 
 
 2013  2004 
   Percent    Percent  
   of Total     of Total 
   County     County  
Employer Employees Rank Population  Employees Rank Population 
Joint Base Lewis McChord       63,501   1  58.4%          42,436  1,3,7* 55.5% 
Local Public Schools (K-12)       13,133   2 12.1%          13,010  2 17.0% 
MultiCare Health System         6,776   3 6.3%            3,587  5 4.7% 
Washington State Employees          6,209  4 5.7%            6,991 4 9.2% 
Franciscan Health Systems         5,814   5 5.4%            2,769  8 3.6% 
City of Tacoma (Public Utilities 
Included)         3,466  6 3.2%               
Pierce County Government         2,873  7 2.7%            3,154  6 4.1% 
Fred Meyer         2,328  8 2..2%            1,960 10 2.6% 
Washington Higher Education          2,196  9 2.0%            2,491  9 3.3% 
Walmart         2,102 10 2.0%            -  - - 

Total       108,398   100%           76,398   100% 
        
Pierce County Population       813,000          740,137    
 
Source: Tacoma-Pierce County Economic Development Board     
Fort Lewis, McChord, and Madigan Army Hospital is now combined into one unit 

 
Operating Information 

 
Pierce Transit Employee by Function 

2004 - 2013 
 

 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
Operations 589 701 746 747 708 674 674 598 575 572 
Maintenance 149 157 154 169 162 163 161 144 109 105 
Administration 127 145 153 174 168 145 144 139 132 125 
 865 1,003 1,053 1,090 1,038 982 979 881 816 802 

                                       
  *Contracted Employees not included in totals prior to 2005 

  
 

50



Pierce Transit 
Statistical Section 

Year ended December 31, 2013  
 

 
 

 
 

 Operating Information 
Fixed Route Statistics 

2004 – 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Source: National Transit Database (NTD) 

51



Pierce Transit 
Statistical Section 

Year ended December 31, 2013  
 

 
 

 
 

Operating Information 
Sound Transit 

Fixed Route Statistics 
2004 – 2013 
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Operating Information 
Specialized Transportation (SHUTTLE) 

2004 – 2013 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Includes directly operated and purchased transportation services. 
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Operating Information 
Vanpool Statistics 

2004 – 2013 
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Operating Information 
Key Performance Measures 

2004 – 2013 
 

 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
PIERCE TRANSIT FIXED ROUTE (excluding Sound Transit): 
Annual Boardings 11,946,488 12,245,514 12,409,416 13,307,473 14,985,277 14,251,163 14,008,691 12,147,907 10,580,268 10,349,186  
Cost per Service 
Hour  $    81.50 $    86.80 $    90.36 $    96.96 $   104.96 $    105.80 $    114.02 $    134.82 $    136.99 $    119.13 

Farebox Recovery  16% 14% 17%  16% 16%  19% 17% 16% 16% 18% 
Passengers per 
Service Hour 21.25 21.1 20.6 21.1 22.7 22.2 22.7 24.4 25.4 25.1 

Cost per Passenger  $     3.84 $    4.11 $     4.38 $     4.59 $     4.63 $     4.77 $     5.03 $       5.54 $     5.40 $       4.75 
           
SHUTTLE:           
Annual Boardings 428,678 415,621 405,6101 425,539 451,686 463,324 446,451 437,225 390,564 371,302 
Cost per Service 
Hour $    72.47 $    66.23 $    64.17    $    66.26 $    72.92 $    71.18 $    78.11 $    86.44 $   91.43 $    91.02 

Farebox Recovery  3% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%  2% 2% 
Passengers per 
Service Hour 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.8 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.0 

Cost per Passenger $    29.73 $    29.67 $    34. 23 $    37.32 $    39.05 $    38.43 $    39.42 $    42.34 $    44.11 $    44.71 
           
VANPOOL:           
Annual Boardings 690,500 734,430 815,139 788,868 851,991  846,040 825,308 859,529 876,852 926,,359 
Cost per Service 
Hour $    28.98 $    26.93 $    24.93 $    25.07 $    29.06 $    30.36 $    31.32 $    32.98 $    30.60 $   28.67 

Farebox Recovery 57% 59% 71%  57% 52% 57% 58% 63% 62% 74% 
Passengers per 
Service Hour 6.9 7.1 6.7 5.5 5.8 6.27 5.99 6.12 6.24 6.42 

Cost per Passenger $     4.23 $     3.82 $     371 $     4.57 $     5.03 $    4.84 $     5.23 $     5.39 $     4.90 $     4.47 
 
Service hours are defined as the hours and miles a vehicle is on the road (including revenue, recovery and deadhead). 
 
 
 

 
 

Operating Information 
Vehicles Available for Maximum Service 

2004 – 2013 
 
 

 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
Pierce Transit Buses 208 193 176 176 218 189 182 182 173 177 
SHUTTLE Vans   154 100 118 146 145 157 171 167 100 100 
Vanpool Vans 284 293 300 320 328 328 326 326 347 371 
 646           586            594           642          691           674         679         675         620         648 
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Grant Information 

Capital Grant History 
2004 – 2013 

 

FTA  2004 2005   2006           2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Section 3 $       2,131,762 $   2 ,774,048 $      343,103 $            - $       - $     - $      - $      - $       27,944 $           62,692 

Section 4 - - - - - - - - 20,808 3,339,533 

Section 8 - - - - - - - - - - 

Section 9 14,921,797 10,261,877 4,687,911 7,528,260 3,172,893 1,474,753 6,741,534 1,886,861 1,931,405 915,379 

Other - - - 53,793 148,056 96,502 82,380 383,078 17,256 1,394,913 

           

WA STATE  

Misc Grants (99,912) 215,807 344,798 504,380 223,262 - 478,620 1,125,916 473,901 142,662 

           
MUNCIPAL/ 
LOCAL           

Partnerships 16,667 1,056,667 154,311 11,941 5,191,984 1,246,058 1,839,931 (26,903)  45,050 - 

 $     16,970,314 $   14,308,399 $    5,530,123 $   8,098,374 $   8,736,195 $   2,817,313 $  9,142,465 $      3,668,952 $     2,516,364 $     5,855,179 
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